In accordance with Rule 3.35 of the Insolvency (England & Wales) Rules 2016 & Paragraph 49(4) of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986

### AM03 Notice of administrator's proposals



SATURDAY



A10

\*A8AKEB1U\* 27/07/2019 COMPANIES HOUSE

#135

1	Company details		
Company number	0 5 5 1 2 5 4 9	Filling in this form  Please complete in typescript or in	
Company name in full	Office Properties Limited	bold black capitals.	
2	Administrator's name		
Full forename(s)	Alastair Paul		
Surname	Beveridge		
3	Administrator's address		
Building name/number	6		
Street	New Street Square		
Post town	London		
County/Region			
Postcode	E C 4 A 3 B F		
Country	United Kingdom		
4	Administrator's name •		
Full forename(s)	Catherine Mary	Other administrator     Use this section to tell us about	
Surname	Williamson	another administrator.	
5	Administrator's address o		
Building name/number	The Zenith Building	Other administrator	
Street	26 Spring Gardens	Use this section to tell us about another administrator.	
Post town	Manchester		
County/Region			
Postcode	M 2 1 A B		
Country	United Kingdom	•	

# Continuation page Name and address of insolvency practitioner

✓ What this form is for Use this continuation page to tell us about another insolvency practitioner where more than 2 are already jointly appointed. Attach this to the relevant form. Use extra copies to tell us of additional insolvency practitioners. X What this form is NOT for You can't use this continuation page to tell us about an appointment, resignation, removal or vacation of office.

→ Filling in this form Please complete in typescript or in bo d black capitals.

All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by \*

1	Appointment type	
	Tick to show the nature of the appointment:  Administrator  Administrative receiver  Receiver  Manager  Nominee  Supervisor  Liquidator  Provisional liquidator	● You can use th's continuation page with the following forms:  - VAM1, VAM2, VAM3, VAM4, VAM6, VAM6, VAM7  - CVA1, CVA3, CVA4  - AM02, AM03, AM04, AM05, AM06, AM09, AM10, AM12, AM13, AM14, AM19, AM20, AM21, AM22, AM23, AM24, AM25  - REC1, REC2, REC3  - LIQ02, LIQ03, LIQ05, LIQ13, LIQ14,  - WU07, WU15  - COM1, COM2, COM3, COM4  - NDISC
2	Insolvency practitioner's name	
Full forename(s)	Deborah	
Surname	King	
3	Insolvency practitioner's address	
Building name/num	ber 6	
Street	New Street Square	
Post town	London	
County/Region		
Postcode	E C 4 A 3 B F	
Country	United Kingdom	

# AM03 Notice of Administrator's Proposals Statement of proposals I attach a copy of the statement of proposals Sign and date Administrator's Signature Signature date Administrator's Signature Signature date Administrator's Signature

#### AM03 Notice of Administrator's Proposals

#### Presenter information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact name Michael Watkin
Company name AlixPartners UK LLP
Address The Zenith Building
26 Spring Gardens
Post town Manchester
County/Region
Postruce M 2 1 A B
Country United Kingdom
CX
Telephone 0161 838 4500

#### ✓ Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

### Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The company name and number match the information held on the public Register.
- You have attached the required documents.
- You have signed and dated the form.

#### Important information

All information on this form will appear on the public record.

#### Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address, however for expediency we advise you to return it to the address below:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

#### Further information

For further information please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse

### **Alix**Partners

# Administrators' Statement of Proposals

Office Properties Limited (formerly MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited)

In Administration

26 July 2019

#### **Contents**

1.	Why this report has been prepared	1
	Summary of information for creditors	
3.	Background and circumstances leading to the Administration	4
4.	The objective of the Administration	6
5.	The Administration strategy and steps taken to date	7
6.	Financial position and Administrators' receipts and payments	11
7.	Estimated outcome for creditors	13
8.	What happens next	14

#### **Appendices**

Appendix A.	Statutory information
Appendix B.	Director's Statement of Affairs of the Company
Appendix C.	Administrators' Receipts and Payments Account for the Period 21 June 2019 to 19 July 2019
Appendix D.	Administrators' Trading Account for the Period 21 June 2019 to 19 July 2019
Appendix E.	Administrators' fees and pre-administration costs
Appendix F.	Administrators' details of time spent to date
Appendix G.	Additional information in relation to the Administrators' fees pursuant to SIP9
Appendix H.	Exit routes and discharge from liability

AlixPartners The Zenith Building 26 Spring Gardens Manchester M2 1AB

#### 1. Why this report has been prepared

- 1.1 Alastair Beveridge, Deborah King and Catherine Williamson (the **Administrators**) were appointed on 21 June 2019.
- 1.2 In accordance with UK insolvency legislation, administrators are required to make a statement setting out their proposals for achieving the statutory purpose of an administration. This report and all appendices form the Administrators' proposals and covers the period 21 June 2019 to 19 July 2019 (the **Period**).
- 1.3 The purpose of this report is to provide statutory and financial information about the Company, the background to the Administration, the Administrators' proposed strategy, details regarding the Administrators' fees and the expected outcome for each class of creditor.
- 1.4 The administrator of a company must perform their functions with a view to achieving one of the following statutory objectives:

Objective 1: rescuing the company as a going concern;

Objective 2: achieving a better result for the company's creditors as a

whole than would be likely if the company were wound up

(without first being in administration); or

Objective 3: realising property in order to make a distribution to one or

more secured or preferential creditors.

- 1.5 In this case the Administrators are pursuing the second statutory objective. Further details of how they intend to achieve that objective can be found in section 4 of this report.
- 1.6 The Company's creditors are responsible for approving the Administrators' proposals and fees. In this case it is proposed that the basis of the Administrators' fees and category 2 disbursements will be approved by the secured creditor only. Further details of the Administrators' fees and disbursements can be found at Appendices E to G.
- 1.7 In this case, the Administrators intend to seek approval of their proposals via a deemed approval process and further details on this matter can be found in section 8 of this report.
- 1.8 More information relating to the Administration process, Administrators' fees and creditors' rights can be found on AlixPartners' creditor portal (https://www.alixpartnersinfoportal.com). Log-in details to access this information can be found within the covering letter you have received.
- 1.9 If you require a hard copy of this report or have any queries in relation to its contents or the Administration generally, please contact

  Melissa Fielding on 0161 838 4529, by email at creditorreports@alixpartners.com, or write to AlixPartners' office at The Zenith Building, 26 Spring Gardens, Manchester, M2 1AB.

#### 2. Summary of information for creditors

#### Estimated dividend for creditors

Description	Estimated debt £	Likely level of return £
Secured creditor	391,889	310,072
Preferential creditors	Nil	N/A
Unsecured creditors	3,410,241	52,842

#### Notes:

- 2.1 The estimated debt has been taken from the director's Statement of Affairs (SoA).
- 2.2 Funds available for distribution and dividend rates are detailed before taking into account the estimated costs of making the distribution.
- 2.3 The likely levels of returns are estimated and are subject to change.

#### Secured creditor - Pathway Finance S.a.r.l.

- 2.4 The Company granted a legal charge, including a floating charge, to the secured creditor on 1 July 2013. At the date of appointment, the secured creditor was owed approximately £391,889 (excluding accrued interest and charges) under its security per the SoA.
- 2.5 The secured creditor has agreed to reduce the level of its exposure in consideration for entities within the Group purchasing certain of the Company's assets (**Credit Bids**). These Credit Bids are currently expected to total £310,072. Based on current estimates, it is expected that the secured creditor will suffer a shortfall against its lending.

#### Preferential creditors

2.6 The Company did not have any employees. As such, there are not expected to be any preferential creditors.

#### Unsecured creditors

- 2.7 The SoA indicates that there are unsecured creditors with claims totalling approximately £3,410,241.
- 2.8 Based on initial expectations, the Company's net property is could be approximately £250,000, after Administration costs. Arising from this, the value of the Unsecured Creditors' Fund (defined at paragraph 7.3) would be approximately £53,000, enabling a dividend of approximately one/two pence in the pound, before the costs of distribution.

Office Properties Limited (formerly MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited) – in Administration (the **Company**)

2.9 In respect of preferential or unsecured creditors, UK insolvency legislation stipulates that creditors of the same class should be treated equally. Hence the funds available for distribution are split on a pro-rata basis amongst all creditors of each class, regardless of the size of their claims.

# 3. Background and circumstances leading to the Administration

- 3.1 The Company operated within the IWG Plc (formerly Regus Plc) Group of companies (the **Group**).
- 3.2 The Company held commercial leases to the five sites (the **Properties**) listed below:
  - 83 Baker Street, London, W1U 6AG (Baker Street)
  - John Eccles House, Oxford Science Park, Robert Robinson Avenue, Oxford, OX4 4GP (Oxford)
  - 3rd, 4th and 5th Floor, 33 Cavendish Square, London, W1G 0PW (Cavendish Square)
  - 6 Hays Lane, 47-49 Tooley Street, London Bridge, SE1 2QG (Hays Lane)
  - 27B Floral Street, 15-17 Long Acre, WC2E 9LH (Floral Street)
- 3.3 The Company provided serviced office space to customers on short and medium-term occupancy agreements. The Company's day to day operations were managed by IW Group Services (UK) Limited (**IWGS**).
- 3.4 The Company was incorporated on 19 July 2005 and was acquired by the Group in February 2013. Since the acquisition, the Group has supported the Company by providing equipment rental, data services and management services to the Company in respect of its real estate holdings. This support includes the central management of receipts and the provision of working capital loans, as required.
- 3.5 Originally holding around 10 leasehold interests and acting as guarantor of a further 14 leasehold interests within the Group, following the acquisition, a number of leases have been assigned within the Group and other leases were re-geared. In addition, certain leases expired or were otherwise retained by landlords. As part of this process, significant dilapidations liabilities crystallised.
- 3.6 Trading from the remaining properties was loss making on a standalone basis but had historically been supported by the Group.
- 3.7 Dilapidation discussions took place between the Company and the various landlords as there was a significant variance between the landlords' and the Company's assessment of these claims. Whilst discussions were ongoing, in April 2019, AlixPartners was engaged to conduct contingency planning as, unless the dilapidations position could be agreed, the Group was not prepared to provide further support to the Company in light of the continued losses and significant contingent liabilities.

Office Properties Limited (formerly MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited) – in Administration (the  ${\bf Company}$ )

- 3.8 It became apparent that the Company was unable to meet its on-going liabilities as the dilapidations discussions continued. In order to preserve the position of the Company's creditors, the director of the Company took steps to place the Company into Administration and Alastair Beveridge, Deborah King and Catherine Williamson were appointed as Administrators on 21 June 2019.
- 3.9 Prior to the appointment, a special resolution to change the name of the Company from MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited to Office Properties Limited was agreed and passed by the members. The Registrar of Companies certified the change of name on 18 June 2019.

#### 4. The objective of the Administration

- 4.1 The first objective under the Administration regime is based on the survival of the Company through a Company Voluntary Arrangement (**CVA**) or Scheme of Arrangement (**Scheme**) under part 26 of the Companies Act 2006.
- 4.2 The Administrators consider that the first objective cannot be achieved. Whilst the Company receives the benefit of customer occupation, its trading activities are carried out by IWGS and have historically been loss making. As such, it is not feasible for the Company to enter a CVA or Scheme.
- 4.3 The Administrators are therefore pursuing the second statutory objective on the basis that they anticipate there will be enhanced asset realisations above that which would be available in a winding up scenario. The Administrators will achieve this objective by implementing the strategy outlined in section 5.
- 4.4 The Administrators anticipate that it will be possible to distribute to unsecured creditors by virtue of the Unsecured Creditors' Fund.
- 4.5 Details of the proposed exit routes to the Administration are provided in Appendix H.

#### 5. The Administration strategy and steps taken to date

- 5.1 It is proposed that the Administrators continue to manage the affairs of the Company in order to achieve the objective of the Administration detailed in section 4.
- 5.2 The Administrators have secured funding from Pathway Finance S.a.r.l. (Pathway) and IWGS sufficient to allow a period of continued trading from the Properties following the appointment. This trading period has allowed the Administrators to review the realisation prospects in respect of each of the Company's assets in detail, and to implement the most appropriate disposal strategy. A summary of the realisations achieved to date, together with the proposed strategy for the remaining Properties, is provided below.
- In addition to their statutory objective, the Administrators have duties imposed by insolvency and other legislation and their regulating professional bodies. The Administrators intend to take the following steps to fulfil their intended objective and duties. The detail provided is intended to provide users of this report with information to allow them to understand how the fee estimate and estimate of expenses provided at Appendix E was compiled, and the sensitivities that might be applicable to the Administrators' anticipated fees and expenses.

#### Trading

- 5.4 The Administrators immediately took steps to communicate with the landlords of the Properties with a view to ensuring there was no disturbance to the trading of the business at each site. Negotiations with the landlords in relation to the leases have been commenced and steps have been taken by the Administrators to discharge the post appointment rental obligations.
- 5.5 The day to day operations at each site are being managed by IWGS under an operating agreement (on largely the same terms as the pre-appointment) to ensure consistency and minimal disruption to customers. IWGS will account to the Administrators for income and expenses incurred during the trading period at each site.
- 5.6 The trading period is expected to be loss making overall, with any loss being funded by Pathway. In the unlikely event of a surplus this would be paid to Pathway as an effective cost of providing the trading support. As a result, there will be no detrimental impact to the unsecured creditors.
- 5.7 Since appointment, the Administrators have also instructed IWGS to conduct health and safety inspections at all of the sites to ensure compliance with current regulations.

#### Realisation of assets

Property

5.8 On appointment, Savills plc (**Savills**) was engaged to review the Company's lease portfolio and comment on the disposal prospects of each site. This was carried out with a view to establishing whether any premium could be achieved upon successful transfer to a third party.

5.9 The current status of each of the Properties is summarised below.

Baker Street

- 5.10 An assessment of the Baker Street site concluded that the features and location of the building would be attractive to third parties potentially interested in purchasing the Company's interest in the lease, and/or the Company's business operations at the site. However, rent for the property was considered to be above market average and required some capital expenditure (Capex) in the near term before any marketing would become viable. The Company is not in a position to fund any Capex, or discharge its rental obligations so as to enable a protracted marketing period.
- 5.11 The Administrators consented to Franchise International S.a.r.! (**Franchise**), another company in the Group, approaching the landlord. Franchise agreed alternative terms with the landlord in respect of a new lease to the site, and also offered to purchase the Company's business operations. With Pathway's support, the Administrators agreed to surrender the lease and simultaneously transfer the Company's Baker Street business to Franchise, in return for consideration totalling £260,682. Consideration is payable via a cash payment of £100,136 in respect of a rent deposit and a Credit Bid reduction in the Company's secured creditor balance of £160,546.
- 5.12 The combined actions resulted in a better return to the estate than would have been achievable on the open market, given the ongoing costs of holding the lease, the Capex requirement at the site and the additional costs of marketing that would need to be incurred. Savill's recommended approval of the transaction.

Oxford

- 5.13 The Oxford site has achieved high occupancy rates over recent months. Savill's advice suggested that third parties could potentially be interested in purchasing the Company's interest in the lease, and/or the Company's business operations at the site. Additionally, rent at the property was considered to be slightly below market level, however a rent review is due in 2021 where it is typical for rents to be adjusted to market levels. The site also required some Capex before any marketing would become viable. As stated previously, the Company is not in a position to fund any Capex, or discharge its rental obligations so as to enable a protracted marketing period.
- 5.14 A strategic analysis of the disposal options, in conjunction with advice from Savills, concluded that the highest value, if any could be realised, would be obtained from a sale to the Group. Franchise expressed an interest in the site and commenced negotiations with the landlord. Alternative terms were agreed in respect of a new lease to the site, and Franchise also offered to purchase the Company's business operations. Accordingly, the Administrators agreed to assign the lease and simultaneously transfer the Company's Oxford business to Franchise, in return for consideration totalling £149,526. The sale completed on 19 July 2019 and the consideration is payable via Credit Bid.

5.15 These actions resulted in a better return to the estate than would have been achievable on the open market, given the ongoing costs of holding the lease, the Capex requirement at the site, the potential increase in rent following the rent review and the additional costs of marketing that would need to be incurred.

Cavendish Square

- 5.16 The Cavendish Square centre is well located in central London and the building has historically attracted high end corporate occupiers from the financial and property sectors. The Company leases three floors within the building which are in need of modernisation. In addition, there are only two years remaining on the lease.
- 5.17 The Administrators have engaged in discussions with the landlord in respect of the lease. Pathway and IWGS have agreed to fund short-term rental payments whilst the Administrators try to ensure the discussions result in the highest return to the estate.

Hays Lane

- 5.18 An assessment of the Hays Lane site concluded its central London location could be attractive to third parties.
- 5.19 Pathway and IWGS have agreed to fund short-term rental payments whilst the Administrators continue to discuss options with respect to the lease with the landlord to ensure the highest return to the estate possible.

Floral Street

- 5.20 The Floral Street site is located near to Covent Garden in central London.
- 5.21 The Administrators and the landlord are in communications in respect of the lease. Pathway and IWGS have agreed to fund short-term rental payments at the site.

#### Administration (including statutory reporting)

- 5.22 In addition to their duties relating to realising and distributing the assets of the Company, the Administrators must comply with certain statutory compliance matters in accordance with the Insolvency Act 1986. These include notifying the stakeholders of the appointment and preparing bi-annual reports to creditors advising of the progress of the Administration. The Administrators are responsible for liaising with HMRC to determine the final position in respect of corporation tax, VAT and other taxes that may be owed by or to the Company, and for filing tax returns for the duration of the Administration.
- 5.23 In order to ensure the matters of the Administration are being progressed sufficiently, the Administrators have a duty to conduct periodic case reviews and complete case checklists. In addition, the Administrators' treasury function will also comply with cash accounting requirements including raising payments, processing journal vouchers and posting receipts, preparing bank reconciliations and statutory returns.

5.24 The time taken for statutory tasks is largely fixed, insofar as the cost of preparing a report to creditors or filing an annual return is similar for most cases, except where cases are very large or complex. Where the costs of statutory compliance and reporting to creditors exceeds the initial estimate, it will generally be because the duration of the case has been longer than expected, due to, for example, protracted realisation of assets meaning additional periodic reports have had to be prepared and distributed to stakeholders.

#### **Investigations**

- 5.25 The Administrators will conduct investigations into the conduct of the director and transactions entered into prior to the Company's insolvency, as required by the Company Directors Disqualification Act 1986, and Statement of Insolvency Practice 2 Investigations by Office Holders in Administrations and Insolvent Liquidations. Based on the outcome of the investigations, further steps may need to be taken, details of which will be provided in the next report to creditors. The Administrators' duty is to conduct an initial review to determine whether there are matters which require further investigation, and if so, whether there is a realistic prospect of recovering assets for the insolvent estate for the benefit of creditors.
- 5.26 The Administrators also have a duty to consider the conduct of those who have been directors of the Company at any time during the last three years, and to provide information to the Insolvency Service in respect of that conduct and the circumstances regarding the Company's insolvency. The Insolvency Service will use this information to assess whether there are matters that require them to take action against the directors to prevent them from controlling other companies. The information provided to the Insolvency Service is confidential and is not available to creditors.
- 5.27 A questionnaire is available on AlixPartners' creditor portal (https://www.alixpartnersinfoportal.com) for completion by creditors to assist the Administrators in their investigations. If there are matters that you consider the Administrators should be aware of, please attach details to the questionnaire and return it to AlixPartners' offices at The Zenith Building, 26 Spring Gardens, Manchester, M2 1AB. This request forms part of the Administrators' statutory duties and does not imply any criticism of the director or former director.

#### Creditors (claims and distribution)

- 5.28 The Administrators will provide updates to the secured creditor and deal with unsecured creditor correspondence, telephone calls and email queries. The Administrators will also agree the claims of unsecured creditors, calculate the dividend and make a distribution.
- 5.29 The SoA provides details of 101 unsecured creditors, with combined debts outstanding of £3,410,241. The Administrators will review each claim received and adjudicate it for dividend purposes based upon the supporting documentation provided.
- 5.30 The Administrators will consider creditors qualifying as a small debt to have automatically proved their debt. This rule applies to all creditors valued at £1,000 inclusive of VAT or less in the SoA. Further details are provided at paragraph 7.6.

# 6. Financial position and Administrators' receipts and payments

#### Financial position

- 6.1 The SoA of the Company, together with a list of creditors' names, addresses and details of their claims is attached at Appendix B.
- 6.2 The Administrators have the following observations to make in relation to the director's SoA:
  - As is normal, the director's SoA is before provision for the costs of the Administration.
  - The director has incorrectly categorised Pathway as a preferential creditor.
     Pathway holds floating charge security but is not a preferential creditor as defined by the Insolvency Act 1986.
  - Whilst not calculated in the SoA, the Administrators consider that there may be an Unsecured Creditors' Fund available to unsecured creditors of approximately £52,842.
  - The rent deposit in respect of Baker Street has been received in the sum of £100,136.
  - The Administrators expect to make additional realisations, above those referred to in the SoA, in respect of the sale of customer contracts.
  - The Administrators are currently investigating the recoverability of the amounts due from the tenant of Greycote Place and the suppliers of the Company.
  - There are not expected to be any preferential creditor claims.
  - There are not anticipated to be sufficient funds available to enable a dividend to be paid to unsecured creditors, other than by virtue of the Unsecured Creditors' Fund.

## Administrators' Receipts and Payments Accounts and Trading Accounts

- 6.3 A summary of receipts and payments is attached at Appendix C.
- 6.4 IWGS will ultimately account to the Administrators in respect of the day to day trading at each of the sites. Trading figures for the period are not yet available on a cash basis.
- 6.5 The Administrators have provided an initial trading account, summarising the rental expenses incurred to the end of the Period, at Appendix D.
- 6.6 Ultimately, the Company's trading is expected to be loss making. The performance will not impact the Administration estate as IWGS and Pathway have agreed to fund any post-appointment trading losses for a short period whilst discussions with landlords are undertaken.
- 6.7 In addition, IWGS and Pathway have agreed to fund a portion of the wider Administration costs. The funding has been provided on a non-recourse basis and

Office Properties Limited (formerly MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited)  $\sim$  in Administration (the **Company**)

will be utilised to discharge the Administrators' costs and expenses, to the extent that asset realisations are insufficient to do so. Any surplus funds provided will be repayable to the funding parties and not available to creditors.

#### 7. Estimated outcome for creditors

#### Secured creditor - Pathway Finance S.a.r.l.

7.1 The Company granted a floating charge to the secured creditor on 1 July 2013. At the date of appointment, the secured creditor was owed £391,889 (excluding accrued interest and charges) under its security. It is estimated that the secured creditor is likely to suffer a shortfall.

#### Preferential creditors

7.2 The Company did not have any employees. Therefore, the Administrators do not anticipate receiving any preferential claims.

#### Unsecured creditors

- 7.3 Where there is a floating charge which was created on or after 15 September 2003, the Administrators are required to create a fund from the Company's net property available for the benefit of unsecured creditors (Unsecured Creditors' Fund), commonly known as the 'Prescribed Part'.
- 7.4 Based on present information, the Administrators estimate the value of the Company's net floating charge property to be approximately £250,000. This figure includes realisations achieved by way of Credit Bids. Arising from this, the value of the Unsecured Creditors' Fund is estimated to be £52,842.
- 7.5 The likely level of return for unsecured creditors can be found within section 2 of this report. Creditors are invited to submit details of their claims to this office, using the Proof of Debt form that can be downloaded from AlixPartners' creditor portal. Any claims received will be held on file until the Administrators are in a position to make a distribution.
- 7.6 If the amount owed according to the Company's records is less than £1,000 inclusive of VAT, creditors are not required to submit a proof in order to be entitled to any dividend paid in respect of that debt and no further action is required. However, if there is a difference between the amount creditors believe to be owed and the Company's records, or should you wish to participate in any dividends to be paid to creditors, a Proof of Debt form is required.

#### 8. What happens next

#### **Approval of Proposals**

- 8.1 The Administrators think that the Company has insufficient property to enable a distribution to be made to its unsecured creditors other than via the Unsecured Creditors' Fund. As a result, the Administrators are not required to seek a decision from the unsecured creditors as to whether they approve the Proposals.
- 8.2 Creditors whose debts amount to at least 10% of the total debts of the Company may however request that approval of the proposals is given via a formal decision of creditors. Any requests for a decision procedure must be made in writing on or before 9 August 2019.
- 8.3 If creditors wish for such a decision to be made by a physical meeting of creditors, then the threshold required is either 10 creditors, 10% by value of creditors or 10% of the number of creditors. If you wish for a meeting to be held, you must notify us in writing on or before 9 August 2019.
- 8.4 If a decision is not requisitioned by creditors by this date the proposals will be deemed to have been approved.

#### Report

8.5 The Administrators are required to provide a progress report within one month of the end of the first six-month period.

For and on behalf of Office Properties Limited

KIM

Alastair Beveridge Administrator

Aummstrato

Encs

#### Appendix A. Statutory information

#### **Company information**

Company name	Office Properties Limited
Registered number	05512549
Registered office	The Zenith Building, 26 Spring Gardens, Manchester, M2 1AB
Former registered office	1 Burwood Place, London, W2 2UT
Trading addresses	Various, as detailed in paragraph 3.2
Trading name	MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited
Court details	High Court of Justice, Business and Property Courts of England and Wales
Court reference	4120 of 2019

#### Appointor's information

Name	Address	Position
Timothy Sean James Donovan Regan	c/o 1 Burwood Place, London, England, W2 2UT	Director of the Company

Details of the Company's director, former director, and shareholder at the date of appointment are as follows:

	Date appointed	Date resigned	Number of shares held	Percentage of shareholding
Director				
Timothy Sean James Donovan Regan	22 March 2013	N/A	N/A	N/A
Celia Mary Barbara Donne	22 March 2013	10 January 2019	N/A	N/A
Shareholder				
IWG Group Holdings S.a.r.l.			1	100%

#### Administrators' information

Name	Address	IP number	Name of authorising body
Alastair Paul	AlixPartners, 6 New Street Square,	8991	Insolvency Practitioners
Beveridge	London, EC4A 3BF		Association
Deborah Janet	AlixPartners, 6 New Street Square,	9639	Insolvency Practitioners
King	London, EC4A 3BF		Association
Catherine Mary Williamson	AlixPartners, The Zenith Building, 26 Spring Gardens, Manchester, M2 1AB	15570	Insolvency Practitioners Association

Office Properties Limited (formerly MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited) - in Administration (the **Company**)

The validity of the appointment has been confirmed by the Administrators' legal advisor, Pinsent Masons LLP.

The Insolvency Regulation Recast (EU) 2015/848 applies to the Administration. The proceedings are main proceedings as defined by article 3 of the Regulation. The Company is based in the UK.

In accordance with paragraph 100(2) of schedule B1 of the Insolvency Act 1986, all functions of the Administrators are to be exercised by any or all of the Administrators. All references to the Administrators should be read as the Joint Administrators.

# Appendix B. Director's Statement of Affairs of the Company

#### Statement of affairs

Name of Company Office Properties Limited - in Administration	Company number 5512549
In the High Court of Justice, Business and Property Courts of England and Wales, Insolvency and Companies List (ChD)	Court case number

Statement as to the affairs of Office Properties Limited - in Administration

on the 21 June 2019 the date that the company entered administration

#### Statement of Truth

I believe that the facts stated in this statement of affairs are a full, true and complete statement of the affairs of the above company as at 21 June 2019, the date that the company entered administration

Full name	TI DEC	<u> </u>	
Signed	1		
Dated	9°J.J.	7 2019	
		,	

#### A - Summary of Assets **ASSETS** Estimated to **Book Value** Realise Assets subject to fixed charge: Less: Due to secured creditor Surplus / (Shortfall) to secured creditor Assets subject to floating charge: Rent Deposit - Baker Street 675,000 100,000 202,841 192,187 Prepayments - other Prepayments - amounts due from Landlords Amounts due from tenants of Greycoat Place 7,824 7,824 Amounts due from suppliers 649 849 Estimated total assets available for preferential creditors 1,078,501 106,474

Date

#### A1 - Summary of Liabilities

	Estimated to Realise £
Estimated total assets available for preferential creditors (Carried from page A)	108,474
i. iabilities	
Preferential creditors:- Pathway Finance SARL	(391,889)
Estimated deficiency/surplus as regards preferential creditors	(283,415)
Estimated prescribed part of net property where applicable (to carry forward)	
Estimated total assets available for floating charge holders	(283,415)
Debts secured by floating charges	-
Estimated deficiency/surplus of assets after floating charges	(283,415)
Estimated prescribed part of net property where applicable (brought down)	
Total assets available to unsecured creditors	
Unsecured non-preferential claims (excluding any shortfall to floating charge holders)	
Diapidation claims	(2,675,000)
Other rent and service charge accruals	(39,124) (373,944)
Other IWG Group Intercompany trade creditors Other Trade creditors	(322,173
Estimated deficiency/surplus as regards non-preferential creditors (excluding any shortfall to floating charge holders)	(3,410,241)
Shortfall to preferential creditors Shortfall to floating charge holder (brought down)	(283,415
Estimated deficiency/surplus as regards creditors	(3,693,656
Issued and called up share capital	(1
Estimated total deficiency/surplus as regards members	(3,693,657

Signature <sub>.</sub>	Date	9h July 2019
-		

# COMPANY CREDITORS

More: You must include all creditors and identify all creditors under his purchase, chatci lassing or conditional sale agreements and customers chaining amounts paid in advance of the supply of goods of services and creditors chaining retention of title over property in the company's possession.

Name of Creditor or Claimant	Address (with postcode)	Amount of debt &	Amount of Details of any security held debt £ by creditor	geren	Ayus 3
Pathway Finance SAFIL	26. Bookened Royal, Luncabourg, 2449, Luncabourg	391,663	Floating Charge over	01-Jul-13	
Franchise Incensional SARL	26, Boskvard Royal, lexcemboerg, 2463, turcembourg	155,864	-	Ę	ã
Regus Noldings Ple	1 Burnood Place, London, England, W2 2017	132,636	None	M3	Ç.
I'W Group Service [UK] Limited I'I	1 Burwood Ploce, London, England, W2 2UT	46,533	None	n/o	P,
Regus PLC (SA)	22 Gichmille Street, St Helier, Lerzey JE & 8PX	38,645	None	Ş	ş
CB RICHARD ELLIS	107 CHEAPSIDE LONDON EC2Y SMX	100,317	None	M3	í
EDF ENERGY	PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTRE PO BOX 3556 PLYMOUTH PL3 5XQ	43.111	None	n/3	ź
	GVA GRAMLEY LIP PO BOX 4444 LONDON WIATPU	27.343 None	Nonc	M3	ŝ
WEST END OFFICE AGENTS SOCIETY	CIO JULIAN WOOLGAD KNICHT FRANK 20 HAMOVER SOUARE LONDON VIS 162	15,000 None	None	n/s	ę,
JONES LANGLASALIE LIMITED	10 GRESHAM STREET EC2Y 1JO	12,138	12,738 None	ъ	23
BDO STOY HOWARD LLP	SS BAKER STREET LONDON WILL TEU	11,400	11,400 None	e Ju	P.I.S
	ATRIUM COURT THE RING BRACKNELL RG12 (BW	10,284 None	None	143	2,2
REYNOLDS PORTER CHAMBERLAIN LLP	TOWER BRIDGE HOUSE ST KATHARME'S WAY LONDON EIW IAA	7,000	None	nia	P.3
	MITERNATIONAL HOUSE 1-6 YARMOUTH PLACE MAYFAR, LONDON WILTBU	6,300	None	ŕ	ź
SAVILS (UR) LTD	FRIST FLOOR DSPREY HOUSE I PERCY ROAD MUNTINGDON PE29652	5,701	5,701 None	143	ź
UBERTYRIC	CREDIT CONTROL DEPARTMENT ROBERT BUCKLE LONDON VIB SAN	#.*	None	ş	3
DEVELOPMENT SECURITIES (INVESTIMENTS)	PORTLAND HOUSE STAG PLACE SWIE SDS	4,430	4,430 None	ž	ź
	PO BOX 6563 HARLOW ESSEX CM20 2FR	051'3	None	Ş	ĩ
HUB CREATE	UNIT DC.206 THE CLARENCE CENETRE 6 ST GEORGES CIRCUS LONDON SEI GFE	4.032	4,032 None	દ્વ	٤
ASHTEAD PLANT HIRE COLTD	102 DALTON AVENUE BIRCHWOOD PARK, BIRCHWOOD WAS 6YE	3,851	3,851 Nose	nd's	Ž,
MJMAPPILP	180 GREAT PORTLAND STREET 20 GUEENSMERE HIGH STREET LONDON WIW SOZ	3,804	3,804   Nem	n/s	n/a
CANARY WHARF CAR PARKS LTD	ONE CANADA SQUARE CANARY WHARF LONDON E14 SAB	3,660	3,660 None	e/a	Ş
BIRC	BT PAYMENT SERVICES LTD NEWCASTLE NESS 6AA	3,54	3,541 None	ç	ź
ESSEX EMCINEERING SOLUTIONS LTD	UNIT 2 QUEENSWAY HOUSE CANVEY ISLAND 558 09Y	2,670	2,670 None	27.5	ŝ
DRIVERS JONAS	6 GROSVENOR STREET LONDON WIXOUJ	2,513	2,513 None	n/s	Ş
ACE EUROPE	CLAIMS DEPT 200 BRICOMELAY GLASGOV GLARU	2,500	2,500 None	43	ŝ
TORPEDO FACTORY GROUP	THE OLD TORPEDO FACTORY ST LEGNARD'S ROAD LONDON NWIO 6ST	2,365	2,365 None	n/s	nts
UNITED UTHITES WATER PLC	PO BOX 1062 DAWSON HOUSE GREAT SANKEY WARRINGTON WAA SHE	2,181	Mone	n/s	n/s
HSS - HIPE SERVICE GROUP PLC	25 WILDWIANE MITCHAMCRA 1TS	1,763	1,763 None	13	n/3
EXPOTEL HOTEL RESERVATIONS	ST JAMES HOUSE WELLINGTON ROAD STOCKPORT SK4 2RZ	1,745	None	n/s	nta
HILTON LONDON HEATHROW	SHIVA HOTELS HEATHROW LTD POYLE ROAD COUNDROOK SL3 OFF	1,681	1,681 None	e/u	ź
CT/ BRUNG SOLUTIONS LTD	UNIT 504 BLACKBURIN BB13BL	1,642	1,642 None	î	ŝ
SEMPLEFRASER	80 GEORGE STREET EDINOURINENS 38U	1,560	None	ę,	ç
BPP PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION	STONDON WALL BUILDINGS LONDON WALL LONDON ECRMSPO	1,457	None	P-/-3	Ş
(NET-WORK (2001) (TD	THE ENGINE HOUSE WHARFEBANK BUSINESS CENTRE BRIET ROAD OTLEY 152/3JP	1,440	1,440 None	n/a	Ę.
HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM	REVENUE SERVICES DIVISION PO BOX 1453 LONDON W69UU	1,432	1,432 None	e/s	n/a
MALMAISON ( MANCHESTER )	H3 PICCADILY MANCHESTER MI 11.2	1,368	Mone	h/3	aç.
INFOSERVE LTD	SOUTHSIDE AVIATION LEED'S BRADFORD INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LEED'S L'SIS TUG	1,175	None	n/s	h/3
BERKELEY INTERIORS	MORTIMER HOUSE 43 CHURCH ST THEALE BERKSHIRE RGT 55X	1,066	1,066 None	PM3	N.S
COLT TECHNOLOGY SERVICES	BEAUFORT HOUSE IS ST BOTOLPH STREET LONDON ECOATON	374	374 None	c <sub>F4</sub>	ŝ
ADAPT SERVICES LTD	142-148 GOSWELL ROAD LONDON ECIVIDU	865	None	m/3	ç
ALL SEASONS MIRE	UNIT 4 HAREWOOD FARM ANDOVER DOWN LONDON ROAD FULLERTON SPIT TL	643	None	ç,	ź
RAPID CLIMATE CONTROL	423 BECONTREE AVENUE ESSEX DAGENHAM PRAS JUH	<b>20</b>	None	e,	ž,
INSTANT OFFICES LTD	55 NORTH WHARF ROAD PADOINGTON LONDON W21LA	670	670 None	N/S	Nto
CFESUID	SADDLESWORTH BUSINESS CENTRE OLDHAM OLD SDF	999	666 None	c/a	e/u
TIMBERSTONE UK	EUROPA MOUSE BARCROFT STREET BURY BL3 SOT	999	None	Š	a,
MYDECO 30 LIMITED	NEWCOMBE HOUSE WILSTO	900	None	72	7.W
WAGSTAFF	UNIT 15 ROSEMOUNT ROAD VEMBLEY LONDON HAG 4PE	795	564 None	ž	£

# COMPANY CREDITORS

Marra of Candilla or Cistinata	Addess (Nin) pastocial)	Amount of dedit	uncuri of Details of any security held by Date Becurity details	Clate Brounty	Value of
PERRYS PAINTERS	TION PETWERTON ROAD HENDACINE BS IN 982	ĝ	None	Ę	2
SOUTH EAST WATER LYD	PO BOX 2203 BROSTOL BSP97PAL	8	None	ę	Ę
OTYSPERM (US) LTD	P.	ş	Nana	è	E
LL S REWEAGENTS	16. CACKIDOS PLACE NCINAIRS	2	#SB None	ŧ	E
CALBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL	PAUD PLOOR LICH HOUSE CANESTO DE CITY COLHECT. CAMBRIDGE CAD JULA	. FF2	Non	Ŗ	E
PRO ACTIVE MADVIENANCE	13 KARATHUS GARTH PARSLEY PLOSEY L878 STO	300	None	2742	Ę
PITHEY BOWES LTD	PO BOX 6510 THE POWACLES MAPLOW 6386X CHIR 9L8	2	None	2/4	Ę
CLASS TELL'COMMUNICATIONS	THE PROPERCOACH HOUSE LEATHERHEAD KTS BIR	35/	Kone	ם	ē
ECHITAGU DVANS	S BOCTON STREET CONDON WILL BBA	ĕ	264 None	\$	Ę
KOUR DAKE LOCK CO.	171 MERE CREEN ROAD SUNTON COLDINALD BTS SUY	- 264	Mune	124	Ę
STOCKCAND MANGEMENT (UK) LTD	STOCIGAND 151 WEST GEORGE STREET GLASDOW CR 23J	1/2	None	# N	ş
MELPHYC HAND RECRUITMENT LTD	THE CUSTON MOUSE THE OURY PERZANCE TRIS 44A	絕	Nore	e,e	2
S.P. CLEANDAG	119 THE GARDENS - DROCKNAMS PARKALO PA.	226	None	¥.	10.0
SKYLINE ELEVATORS LTD	12 WRECHANI ROAD BASELDON SSISOPX	162	234 None	2/4	S.
MALNIMISON (CHART SOURPE) LTO	I 19-21 CHARMOLOSE SQUARE LONDON ECTA OWN	210	None	ti,fer	٤
CALDER COMFORMICES LYD	Arti o Moscabs Court, Clayton Wood Ree, Leeds, 1818 BRF	208	None	e/a	٤
EVO TECHNÓLÓGIES	PO BOX 437 POTTSECHO TEXAS 74076	202	None	ale a	9/8
HUNTEVENIE AND CUSTOMS	FOUNTAIN COURT 119 GRANGE ROAD INIDILESBONDINGS YST ZUA	022	ZO Nane	8,6	B/U
WAS NAKACEMENT SERVICES LTD	II WRST GAZDEN PLACE KENDAL STREET LONDON WZ 2/40	196	Натю	#K	S
BENUGO	THE WATERFROWT SOO THAMES VALLEY PARK DRIVE READING ROOT IPT	190	190 (Nens	2,14	II,
OFFICE BROKER COM LIVITED	SIR ROBERT PERLINUL MIL LAVE FAZELEY TAWACHTH BIB 100	168	None	n-te	Ę.
CALLOW/LOCKSMTNE LINETED	117 LORDSHIP WHE EAST DIRWICH 5£22 8HU	144	None	9	ş
THE PRINT FACTORY (LONDON) 1893 LYD	SOUTH PORTVAY CLOSE ROUND SPRINGEY NOR PHAND TON IND EDN	144	None	arts.	i de
HARE INTELLIGENCE PATERNATIONAL LTD	KANT SACTON PARK ESTATE THE VALE ACTON WA) 706	125	North	N/A	٤
FREST FASTE	LONEWOOD ROAD TRAFFORD PARK INT 192	122		44	age G
CHMES 4 LUNCH	ZIA SY WARTING WALK DORWNO FRM LUT	116		ına	ng.
FORTRESS NASTER LOCKSMITHS LTD	I'UT BECKTON HILL LONDON SWZ 1AA	111		rata	2
#OC GASES	COUSTONER SERVICE CENTRE PO BOX 12 PRIESTLY ROAD. WANDHESTER AZOLUT	251	None	u,c	g
WARTIN LAVELE LTD	CENTIFICAL HOUSE CELYTURION WAY CLECKHEATON BOTO TOE	<b>3</b> 8	None	u,w.	ę
4 THENET WITCHET LTD	THE CLD BARERY 61 MCH STREET ROTTINGDEAN BM2 74G	#	None	R <sup>1</sup> 2	30
SCREWFIX DIRECT	DOSSHIN : ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT MEAD AVE HOUNDSTONE BUSINESS PARK YEOVIL BAZZ BKY	3		lota	P.S.
CAPITAL REPAIRS LTD	CAPITAL HOUSE 231 MIPERIAL DRIVE RATHERS LAVE MOOK HAS THE	2	None	ŧ	5
NACALLAY & CO WINDOW CLEANERS	THE ANCHORAGE 28 ASSENDAN ROAD SURPIT ISLAND WAS ORL	Ð		e de	ĝ.
THE STATE OF THE S	THRESHELFORDS BUSINESS PAUK PANORTH ROAD PERNING ESSEX COSESE	<b>6</b> 4	- Kanak	33	17/3
JIMEN GREENE	24 CASTLEFIELD CLOSSE WAST DEVINT. LINERPOOL 112 SAQ	8	Meno	nts.	컐
OR LINEW LTD	LINE 7-13 CHAPMAN COUNT CHAPPLEETS BROWSTRAM, ESTATE S88 OPG	14.	North	n/s	100
FRST RESPONCE TRAINING	HRGT RESPONSE TRANSKO & CONSIL TAKOT SINGH STREET, PERSHORE	ŝ	None	Ę	ą
PASS GACOUP LTD	(WESTERNINDUSTRIAL ESTATE. GAESPHILLY CPB) IXII	60		£.	Ş
BRAND BREWERY LTD	ST CLEARENTS HOUSE 77-28 CLEARENTS LANE L'ONDON POUNTAE	ŝ		cus	1 <b>/6</b>
CSMINE	130-130 MAIDSTONE ROAD SIDCUP DA14 SHB	. 45		PA PA	55
ພວເໝ	LIDC HOUSE THE CHURCH HOUSE HOUSE HOUSE HOUSE	55		cup	8
OCI NOT USE, HOT AVITE	LINNT & BARINESS WALLIS COURT WELLINGTON ROAD.: MIGH WYCOMBE BUCKS HP12 3PS	43	None	rģs.	eÇri.
LONNOLLTD	SOUTHERN HOUSE ATTACHAS WAY MEDVIAY CITY ESTATE KENT MEZ ADN	F		in/a	£
BANKS SADLER LTD	S CLIFFORD STREET YORK YOU GING	R		n/a	뒫
PRADE PAINTS		24	None	اسه	Ş
GWORRALL & SON LTD	ITA GREAT EUFFOLK STREET CONDON SEI 1PE	ę.	filone	l-vie	e e
CHINE SE LAUNDRY COLLYD	IN GRANGE LOAN EDINGLIRGH ENG THR	•	None	Luga	epu.
St. North's Property Investments Ltd	Sharkinta House, 4 Bathesadys Law, London Bridge Cty, London, 581 2418	ě	<b>DofNone</b>	2	RÍ.
Haztinson 3G UK List	(Neathagan 30 UK Lat, Size House, 20 Glentel Road, Middenthead	ğ	Nove	Ę.	2

# COMPANY CREDITORS

		Arrester of	Amount of Delate of any security had by Date security False of	Cate security	Details
Mamp of Cradition or Claiman	Address (with postcotte)	7 7440	craditor	5	Meanify S.
Outred & City moldings Lid	ocidables Corporate Services (SV) List Grapton Chambers PO Box 173 Road Town Tortols British Month stands	2	De Norte	٤	9
Kensington Commercial Property try Ltd	Kenshytan Contractal Property to Ltd 25 Sanife Now, Landon W/S 25.8	1,000,000,04ere	Acare	8	클
The Royal Landon Mulass Insurance Society Limited	55 Greature Stock Landon Ecily (1911)	375,000,0405	Home	ŧ	70
Aport 55 085 Property Link Trust	Pari Nama House Peter Offer St. Lear St.	700,000 More	*Car	ĝ	7
Patient	Combined House & Thermas more Square Lendan ETW 17W	- COO'000	7.6.4	A	9
		1,716,006			
<sup>11</sup> Balance with IN Group Services (LRC) Larried reflects S	158 13.578 adjustment to correct intercompany entries entrineously biociece in May 199 with other 1940 group trading entries that are uncommended with Office Propositive Limited for administration	hai ara unocemed	nd with Office Properties Lumb	nd (in administrate)	<u>.</u>
			44.11	2100	

Details of shares held 1 Ordinary £1 shares Nominal Value Date No. Of shared held TOTALS 26, boulevard Royal, Luxembourg, 2449, Luxembourg Address (with postcode) Signature Name of Shareholder IW Group Holdings SARL

COMPANY SHAREHOLDERS

#### 

	Period £
Floating charge assets	<u> </u>
Funding for asset realisation costs	340,800
Trading surplus/(Deficit)	407,104
Baker Street sale consideration	100,135
	848,039
Payments	
Agent's/valuer's fees	20,000
	(20,000)
Total balance	828,039
Represented by	
Floating current account	555,925
VAT receivable	59,765
	828,039

#### Notes:

The above is subject to small rounding differences.

<sup>\*</sup>The surplus arises due to timing differences between funding being received and costs being discharged. This balance is expected to unwind and result in a NIL balance post all trading.

# Appendix D. Administrators' Trading Account for the Period period 21 June 2019 to 19 July 2019

928
<del>9</del> 28
28
573
412
790
740
431
377
24)
.04

#### Note:

The Surplus is ultimately expected to be NIL once all accrued costs associated with trading have been settled.

The above is subject to small rounding differences.

# Appendix E. Administrators' fees and pre-administration costs

#### Administrators' fees

The basis of the Administrators' fees may be fixed on one or more of the following bases, and different bases may be fixed for different duties performed by the Administrators:

- a percentage of the value of the assets with which they have to deal;
- by reference to time properly spent by them and their staff dealing with matters arising in the Administration; or
- as a set amount.

On this assignment it is proposed that the basis of the Administrators' fees shall be fixed by reference to the time properly spent by the Administrators and their staff on matters arising in the Administration.

If creditors resolve to establish a committee, it shall be part of the committee's duties to determine the basis or bases of the Administrators' fees and authorise their disbursements.

Subject to the approval of the relevant creditors, it is proposed that the Administrators will draw fees when funds are available.

#### Pre-administration costs

Pre-administration fees charged and expenses incurred by AlixPartners are as follows:

Charged by	Brief description of services provided	Total amount charged $\it E$	Amount paid £	Amount unpaid £
AlixPartners	Planning for the appointment as Administrators and assisting the Company in implementing its strategy	22,434	Nil	22,434

Detailed below is a Time Analysis for the pre-administration costs incurred by the Administrators.

Activity category	Hours incurred	Average rate per hour £	Total time cost £
Strategy and planning	42	517	21,617
Valuations of assets	2	355	817
Total	44	509	22,434

The costs incurred by AlixPartners were subject to an agreement dated 11 April 2019. They were engaged by the Group on a time cost basis. The work was performed prior to the Administration in order to ensure that the Administration strategy could be implemented effectively and has furthered the achievement of the objective of the Administration. Pre-administration costs are not included in the Fee estimate set out later in Appendix E.

Please note that the payment of unpaid pre-administration costs is normally subject to the approval of creditors or creditors' committee if one is established, separately to the approval of the Administrators' proposals. This approval will be the responsibility of the creditors committee, if one is appointed. Otherwise, it is proposed that approval will be sought from the secured creditors in accordance with rule 18.16 of the Insolvency (England and Wales) Rules 2016.

#### Administrators' fee estimate

Details of the work that the Administrators envisage being required to achieve their selected objective, and to comply with the statutory and regulatory duties that are imposed upon them as a consequence of their appointment, are set out in section 5. The anticipated amount of work and the costs associated with it are set out below.

Activity category	Hours anticipated	Blended rate per hour £	Anticipated cost £
Trading	199	399	79,647
Realisation of assets	162	472	76,472
Administration (including statutory reporting)	80	390	31,212
Investigations	12	262	3,140
Creditors (claims and distribution)	104	226	23,528
Total	557	384	213,999

The above estimate is based on information which has been made available to the Administrators to date. Should any matters arise, such as investigatory matters and/or additional realisable assets, further time will be incurred dealing with such matters. Similarly, if the Administrators encounter any protracted realisations, further time will be incurred in finalising matters. If applicable, the Administrators will advise creditors in further communications.

#### Administrators' disbursements

The below table details the anticipated category 1 disbursements which will be incurred by the Administrators.

	Anticipated cost £
Category 1 disbursements:	
Specific penalty bond	225
Statutory advertising	170
Storage	150
Stationery and postage	860
Telephone charges	50
Total	1,455

The Administrators require prior approval from the secured creditor to draw any category 2 disbursements and the request to draw these disbursements will be issued to the secured creditor with this report. Category 2 disbursements are described in Appendix G.

Office Properties Limited (formerly MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited) – in Administration (the **Company**)

#### **Expenses of the Administration**

The below table details the anticipated expenses which are expected to be incurred by third parties whilst dealing with the Administration.

	Anticipated cost E
Legal costs	30,000
Agent's fees	20,000
Insurance	9,000
Property holding costs	•
Total	59,000

#### Trading position

The Administrators expect trading to be at a net loss. Should there be a trading profit, this will contribute towards the costs of IWGS operating the business and will be retained by IWGS. Conversely, the secured creditor and IWGS have agreed to fund any shortfall, therefore there will be no detrimental impact to the unsecured creditors in any event. A NIL trading result will be the eventual outcome.

#### Appendix F. Administrators' details of time spent to date

Total time costs for the Period are £89,058. This represents 214 hours at an average rate of £416 per hour.

Activity category	Hours incurred	Blended rate per hour £	Time cost £
Trading	79	403	31,850
Realisation of assets	72	483	34,745
Administration (including statutory reporting)	61	358	21,856
Investigations	0.2	645	129
Creditors (claims and distribution)	2	239	478
Total	214	416	89,058

#### Appendix G. Additional information in relation to the Administrators' fees pursuant to Statement of Insolvency Practice 9

#### **Policy**

Detailed below is AlixPartners' policy in relation to:

- staff allocation and the use of sub-contractors;
- · professional advisors; and
- disbursements.

#### Staff allocation and the use of sub-contractors

The Administrators' general approach to resourcing assignments is to allocate staff with the skills and experience to meet the specific requirements of the case.

The case team will usually consist of a managing director, a director or senior vice president, a vice president and a consultant. The exact case team will depend on the anticipated size and complexity of the assignment and the experience requirements of the assignment. On larger, more complex cases, several staff at all grades may be allocated to meet the demands of the case. The Administrators' charge-out rate schedule overleaf provides details of all grades of staff.

With regard to support staff, the Administrators advise that time spent by their treasury department in relation to specific tasks on an assignment is charged. The Administrators only seek to charge and recover secretarial time if a large block of time is incurred, eg report compilation and distribution.

The Administrators have sub-contracted the Company's trading to IWGS under a bespoke management agreement, the terms of which are in line with those agreed by the Company prior to the appointment.

#### Professional advisors

On this assignment the Administrators have used the professional advisors listed below. The Administrators have also indicated the basis of their fee arrangement with them, which is subject to review on a regular basis.

Name of professional advisor	Basis of fee arrangement	
Pinsent Masons LLP (legal advice)	Hourly rate and disbursements	
Savills plc (disposal advice)	Bespoke quoted fee (£20,000)	
Aon plc (insurance)	Premium (risk based)	

The Administrators' choice was based on their perception of the professional advisors' experience and ability to perform this type of work, the complexity and nature of the assignment and the basis of their fee arrangement with them.

Office Properties Limited (formerly MWB Business Exchange Centres Limited) – in Administration (the **Company**)

#### **Disbursements**

Category 1 disbursements do not require approval by creditors. Category 1 disbursements may include external supplies of incidental services specifically identifiable to the case, such as postage, case advertising, invoiced travel, external printing, room hire and document storage. Also chargeable will be any properly reimbursed expenses incurred by the Administrators and their staff.

Approval for category 2 disbursements will be sought as specified in section 1 of this report and may consist of business mileage for staff travel charged at the rate of 45 pence per mile.

#### **Charge-out rates**

A schedule of AlixPartners' hourly charge-out rates for this assignment effective from 1 January 2019 is detailed below. Time is charged by the appointees and case staff in units of six minutes.

Description	Ε
Managing director	775-945
Director	645-775
Senior vice president	450-565
Vice president	325-425
Consultant	110-305
Treasury and support	120-315

#### Appendix H. Exit routes and discharge from liability

#### Dissolution

Based on present information, the Administrators think a dividend will be paid to the unsecured creditors, but only by virtue of the Unsecured Creditors' Fund. In this situation, the Administrators will file a notice together with their final progress report at court and with the Registrar of Companies for the dissolution of the Company once the funds have been distributed. The Administrators will send copies of these documents to the Company and its creditors. The Administration will end following the registration of the notice by the Registrar of Companies.

#### Compulsory liquidation

A liquidator of a company has certain powers such as the ability to disclaim onerous contracts or assets, that are not available to an administrator. If such powers become necessary, the Administrators may make an application to court to end the Administration and request that the court places the Company into compulsory liquidation. The Administrators will send notice of any such application to the Company and its creditors.

#### Discharge from liability

The Administrators are seeking approval for their discharge from liability from the secured creditor. It is proposed that the Administrators will be discharged from liability under paragraph 98 of schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 directly after their appointment as Administrators ceases to have effect.